
APPROVED, 10-20-15 

Page 1 of 5 
 

UNIVERSITY REVIEW COMMITTEE 
Tuesday, October 6, 2015 

11 a.m., Hovey 102 
 

MINUTES 
 
 
Members present: Angela Bonnell, Rick Boser, Diane Dean, Joe Goodman, Christopher Horvath,  
Doris Houston, Sheryl Jenkins, David Rubin, Sam Catanzaro (non-voting) 
 
Members not present: None 
 
Others present: M. Shane McCreery (Director of Equal Opportunity, Ethics, and Access; Ethics Officer; 
and Title IX Coordinator), Bruce Stoffel (recorder) 
 
I. Call to order 

 
Chairperson Doris Houston called the meeting to order at 11 a.m. 

 
II. Discussion with M. Shane McCreery (Director of Equal Opportunity, Ethics, and Access, 

Ethics Officer, and Title IX Coordinator) of considerations related to equity 
 
Sam Catanzaro explained that Shane McCreery’s participation in the URC meeting is related to 
the June 1, 2015 request by URC that Provost Janet Krejci consider forming a university-wide 
task force to study the issue of equity review. Krejci has asked URC to gather additional 
information about equity review to inform her response to the request. Krejci suggested that the 
committee discuss with McCreery the role of the Office of Equal Opportunity, Ethics, and 
Access (OEOEA) in equity matters.   

 
McCreery addressed the committee, explaining functions of OEOEA with regard to equity. He 
explained that a core compliance function of OEOEA is compilation each year of an affirmative 
action plan for the University. Through development of the plan, personnel recruitment and 
retention efforts are measured and a salary equity analysis is conducted (see attached handout 
disseminated by McCreery at the meeting).   

 
Three steps are involved in the affirmative action planning process, McCreery said. Step one 
involves sorting all university employees into job groups. There are 52 such groups in the 
current plan. The two most closely associated with interests of URC are tenure track faculty and 
non-tenure track faculty. Average salary is computed for each group. Affirmative Action 
Officer Jessica Norris then reviews all salaries in the group relative to the average, identifies 
salaries that differ significantly from the average, and studies the data for patterns associated 
with race, gender, and other protected classes. Step two is a multiple regression analysis 
conducted by an outside vendor to test the relative influence of protected class status on salary 
while considering relevant variables such as length of service and level of performance. Step 
three involves collecting anecdotal evidence. This typically involves interviews of employees 
and supervisors, reviews of historical documentation of performance evaluation, and other 
methods that can illuminate statistical findings in context. Faculty might be asked if they are 
aware of the difference between their salary and the average salary in their employee group and 
if they have asked or might ask that the difference be investigated.  
 



APPROVED, 10-20-15 

Page 2 of 5 
 

McCreery explained that most salary investigations conducted by his office are initiated by 
employees. It is rare that OEOEA would do so. There have been instances of discrimination 
identified through such investigations, he said. 

 
McCreery said he is permitted by federal law to gather data that associates individual 
employees and their salaries with their race, gender, veteran status, and other attributes related 
to protected classes. However, federal law prohibits him from sharing that detailed information 
regarding individual employees. He noted that there are other groups for which he is unable to 
obtain data, LGBT (lesbian, gay, bisexual, transgender, or queer) employees, for example.  
Whether or not aggregate data are available for a group or class, OEOEA works with any 
employee who believes she or he has been discriminated against, he said.  
 
McCreery said OEOEA focuses primarily on discrimination in hiring and other employment 
decisions and does not address salary inversion or compression. Houston asked if OEOEA 
considers employee age in its analyses. McCreery responded that OEOEA does not track 
salaries by age. OEOEA would, however, work with any employee who suspects age 
discrimination.  
 
McCreery noted that OEOEA approaches the concept of equity using the Department of Labor 
definition, while URC seems to view equity in terms of fairness. Houston agreed that OEOEA 
and URC may view the concept of equity differently but noted that URC has not yet settled on 
a definition.  
 
David Rubin noted that the Illinois Board of Higher Education provides faculty salary 
information on its website. Angela Bonnell added that Milner Library has salary information 
for individual employees at the University. McCreery clarified that those sources do not 
provide demographic information for individual employees. He has that information but cannot 
legally share it. 
 
Another function of OEOEA, McCreery said, is monitoring hiring practices to further hiring 
goals related to race and gender. His office meets annually with departments and schools to 
review actions taken by them to recruit diverse candidate pools. The focus of the discussions is 
on processes used by departments to recruit and hire employees. McCreery noted that OEOEA 
does not monitor salaries paid to new hires. 
 
Catanzaro asked McCreery how many inquiries OEOEA receives annually from faculty 
members. McCreery said OEOEA received three inquiries regarding compensation differences 
during the last calendar year. If OEOA determines that compensation differences are unrelated 
to race or gender, OEOEA cannot be further involved. Catanzaro asked how frequently 
OEOEA determines that discrimination has occurred. McCreery responded that multiple 
regression analysis aids in the determination. Most instances are unrelated to protected class. 
He said he seeks help from DFSCs and CFSCs when investigating salary differences, because 
they best understand how decisions regarding faculty are made. But there can be differences of 
opinion within those bodies, he noted. McCreery explained that if he identifies what appears to 
be an instance of discrimination, he advises the Provost and President accordingly.  
  
Houston asked about the third party vendor used to conduct multiple regression analyses. 
Management Associates is the current third party vendor used by OEOEA, McCreery said. 
OEOEA gathers data needed for the analysis and transmits the data to Management Associates. 
The vendor conducts the analysis independently of OEOEA. Management Associates staff and 
OEOEA staff meet for two days to discuss analysis results, which are used to establish hiring 



APPROVED, 10-20-15 

Page 3 of 5 
 

goals on the unit level. OEOEA then shares the information with administrators in unit 
meetings. McCreery noted that the University establishes hiring goals rather than hiring quotas 
or targets. 
 
Joe Goodman asked McCreery if OEOEA proactively studies DFSC documents to prevent 
disparities from happening. McCreery responded that OEOEA is not involved with faculty 
hiring policies and procedures in that manner. Instead, OEOEA focuses on results of hiring 
practices. If a disparity related to protected class is identified by OEOEA, McCreery studies 
factors such as the race and gender composition of the DFSC/CFSC and methodology used in 
hiring decisions.    
 
Rubin asked about reporting lines for McCreery’s position. McCreery said he is employed by 
the University and reports directly to the President. He operates independently of other 
university units. He noted that he is protected in his decision making by whistle blower 
legislation like all other university employees.  

 
Houston reported feedback she has received from the director of the School of Social Work 
regarding assistance provided by OEOEA with hiring practices. The school director reports that 
data provided by McCreery and the hiring goals he has suggested have helped the school 
modify its hiring processes.  
 
McCreery concluded his remarks and left the meeting at 11:30 a.m. Committee members then 
reflected on information provided by McCreery and continued discussion of the URC role in 
equity review.  
 
Christopher Horvath noted that, as a new committee member, he is unclear what URC is 
seeking to learn regarding equity review and what issues the committee is seeking to resolve. 
Diane Dean explained that equity review has been mentioned in the ASPT document since its 
inception, but no one seems to know what equity review means or entails. Catanzaro added 
that, to his knowledge, an equity review has never been done at the University. Houston stated 
that the current ASPT document authorizes URC to conduct an equity review but does not 
define the term. She said that she and Rubin dialogued with campus administrators and studied 
American Association of University Professors (AAUP) documents last academic year to learn 
more about the issue and then shared their findings with URC. The committee has subsequently 
concluded that equity review is a matter that should involve groups other than URC and has 
recommended revision of the ASPT document accordingly. URC has recommended to the 
Provost that she form a university-wide task force to study if and how equity review should be 
undertaken at the University. 
 
Horvath suggested that URC focus on investigating pay grades with respect to comparator 
institutions and on studying salary inversion and compression, since those issues do not seem to 
be concerns being addressed by McCreery or by others at the University. Houston agreed that 
those issues should be addressed but so too should equity with respect to protected classes. 
Boser offered that URC might want to focus on inversion and compression since OEOEA is 
already charged with addressing equity related to protected classes.  
 
Houston asked if Catanzaro has any updates from the Provost regarding the URC request for 
creation of a university-wide equity review task force. Catanzaro responded that the Provost 
looks forward to receiving feedback from the committee regarding information it has received 
from McCreery, including questions that remain unanswered. Houston noted that feedback may 



APPROVED, 10-20-15 

Page 4 of 5 
 

also be forthcoming from the Faculty Caucus through its review of the ASPT document this 
year.  
 
Bonnell noted that there appear to be more resources available for salary adjustments in the 
academic/professional employee category than in the faculty category. Bonnell asked if units 
are limited to the resources in the AIF fund when trying to address inversion or compression of 
faculty salaries. Catanzaro responded that AIF is one resource available to address the issue. He 
noted that even when salary increases are zero, limited funds are available to provide raises for 
faculty members who have been promoted and to make counter offers to faculty members who 
have received job offers from other institutions.  For CS employees, salary increases may be 
recommended after desk audits or promotions even if there is no salary increase program in a 
given year.  AP employees can also receive salary increases in such a year if their 
responsibilities increase or they are promoted. 
 
Rubin noted that, while there will be no raises for Illinois State faculty this year, faculty salaries 
across the country will increase four percent on average. He asked if the University is legally 
responsible to provide funds to increase salaries commensurately. Catanzaro responded that 
there is no law or policy that requires the University to do so. He explained that the state does 
not allocate funds to public universities for specific uses such as salary increases. Instead, each 
university decides how best to spend the funds allocated to it by the state.  
 
Horvath offered that URC seems to be responsible for policies, procedures, and processes 
related to salary. An important component of that responsibility might be to investigate 
procedures followed by units at different levels when making equity adjustments. It would be 
helpful to know how units are making such decisions, he said. Data regarding salary inversion 
and compression within ranks and across ranks would also be helpful, he said. It does not 
appear that the University is gathering such data, he added.  
 
Houston noted that focusing on inversion and compression while precluding investigation of 
other issues related to equity would be presumptuous, because the committee has not yet 
defined equity. Houston said she does not favor a narrow definition because there are broader 
discussions to be had. Boser suggested that URC start by drafting a definition for use in the 
ASPT document. Houston asked who would then make the decision regarding the definition. 
Boser responded that the Academic Senate and Faculty Caucus will ultimately decide the 
matter after broader discussion, which happens in shared governance.  
 
Catanzaro stated that the ASPT document assigns responsibility for making decisions regarding 
non-salary faculty matters, such as teaching loads and courses, to chairpersons and directors. 
Perhaps URC should suggest to the Provost that the discussion of equity focus on salary rather 
than on non-salary issues, he said. Houston expressed her preference that discussions of equity 
review address non-salary issues as well. 
 
Houston thanked committee members for a productive discussion and recommended that URC 
continue the discussion at its next committee meeting. Houston asked Catanzaro if the Provost 
has set a date by which she would like feedback from the committee. Catanzaro responded that 
the Provost has not communicated such a date.  

  



APPROVED, 10-20-15 

Page 5 of 5 
 

III. Approval of minutes from the September 22, 2015 meeting 
 
Boser moved, Jenkins seconded approval of minutes from the September 22, 2015 meeting as 
distributed prior to the meeting. The motion carried on voice vote, all voting in the affirmative. 
 

IV. Update regarding Faculty Caucus ASPT review 
 
Catanzaro thanked Houston and Dean for representing URC at the September 23 (2015) 
Faculty Caucus meeting and for their contributions to the discussion of the ASPT document. 
The next caucus discussion of the document is scheduled for October 7 (2015). Houston 
referred committee members to the caucus meeting schedule included with the meeting packet 
(see attached). 
 

V. Other business 
 
Dean asked if URC will meet on October 20 (2015), which has been designated the secondary 
committee meeting date for the month. Houston responded that URC will meet on October 20 
to continue its discussion of equity review and to consider any matters requiring committee 
action.  
 

VI. Adjournment 
 
Boser moved, Rubin seconded that the meeting adjourn. Houston adjourned the meeting at 
12:07 p.m. 
  

 
Respectfully submitted, 
Rick Boser, Secretary 
Bruce Stoffel, Recorder 
 
 
Attachments: 
 
Office of Equal Opportunity, Ethics and Access, Salary Equity Analysis (Distributed by M. Shane McCreery at the October 6, 
2015, meeting of the University Review Committee, Illinois State University).  
 
Tentative Schedule for Faculty Caucus Review of 2015-2016 ASPT Revisions, Fall 2015, Office of the Vice President for 
Academic Affairs and Provost, September 24, 2015 


















	V. Other business  Dean asked if URC will meet on October 20 (2015), which has been designated the secondary committee meeting date for the month. Houston responded that URC will meet on October 20 to continue its discussion of equity review and to co...
	VI. Adjournment
	Boser moved, Rubin seconded that the meeting adjourn. Houston adjourned the meeting at 12:07 p.m.
	URC minutes 10-6-15 DRAFT.pdf
	V. Other business  Dean asked if URC will meet on October 20 (2015), which has been designated the secondary committee meeting date for the month. Houston responded that URC will meet on October 20 to continue its discussion of equity review and to co...
	VI. Adjournment
	Boser moved, Rubin seconded that the meeting adjourn. Houston adjourned the meeting at 12:07 p.m.


